Bylaws of the Southern California-Nevada Section of the Mathematical Association of America

ARTICLE I: Name and Purpose

- 1. The name of this Section shall be the Southern California Nevada (SoCal-NV) Section of the Mathematical Association of America (MAA).
- 2. The purposes of the Southern California Nevada Section shall be to advance the mission of the MAA on a regional level (namely within the territory defined in Article II below); to offer guidance to the MAA as it forms and fulfills its mission; to provide professional development and networking activities for those with an interest in mathematics including Section members, mathematics students, and members of the larger mathematics community; to promote discussion and action on issues affecting mathematics teaching, learning, and research in the region regardless of whether those involved are members of the MAA; and to pursue initiatives that advance the core values of the MAA -- Community, Inclusivity, Communication, Teaching & Learning -- in pursuit of our vision of a society that values the power and beauty of mathematics and fully realizes its potential to promote human flourishing.

ARTICLE II: Membership

The membership of the Southern California - Nevada Section shall be members of the Mathematical Association of America whose MAA mailing addresses are in the zip codes listed in the addendum at the end of this document. Exceptions may be made by the MAA membership department upon request of the affected member.

ARTICLE III: Representation, Inclusion, and Anti-Bias Commitment

The SoCal-NV Section of the Mathematical Association of America shall make every effort to reflect the diversity of the Section and to avoid structural and individual biases in its processes. The Section shall ensure its committee members, officers, invited speakers, awardees, and other leaders represent the various geographic regions, types of institutions, and diverse membership within the Section. It shall strive for representation across all dimensions of identity (e.g., gender and race/ethnicity), and shall seek out nominations and update processes for any positions or awards to help achieve broad representation, especially representation from identity groups that are excluded from or minoritized in the various interpretations of our community. Section committees and members may consult the most recent version of the document <u>Guidelines for MAA Selection Committees: Avoiding Implicit Bias</u> for guidance.

ARTICLE IV: Officers and Executive Committee

- The elected officers of this Section shall be the Chair-Elect (also called Vice Chair), Chair (also called Section Chair), Past Chair, Secretary, Treasurer, Program Chair, Vice Program Chair, and Second Vice Program Chair. The Section shall also elect a Representative to the MAA Congress.
 - a. The officers shall be elected by digital ballot sent to all Section members. An election shall not be considered valid unless at least fifteen votes have been received. The Chair-Elect, Chair, Past Chair, Program Chair, Vice Program Chair, and Second Vice Program Chair shall each have one-year terms. At the end of each year, the Chair-Elect becomes Chair, the Chair becomes Past-Chair, the Second Vice Program Chair becomes Vice Program Chair, the Vice Program Chair becomes Program Chair, and the Past Chair and Program Chair retire from the Section leadership unless elected into a position for the next year. The Secretary and Treasurer shall each have three-year terms.
 - b. Nominations for the positions of elected officers may be made by the Executive Committee or by petition to the Executive Committee at least thirty days prior to the election.
 - c. Each Section officer must be a member of the Mathematical Association of America and of this Section.
- In addition to the Section officers listed in IV-1, the Chair may appoint or dismiss, at their discretion, other officers, as needed (such as Meetings Coordinator, sub-region representatives, Section NExT Coordinator, and Communications Officer). Appointed positions should give the Chair four months notice as to the end of their term.
- 3. The Executive Committee of the Section shall consist of the officers of the Section and the Section Representative to the MAA Congress.
 - a. The Executive Committee shall conduct the affairs of the Section between meetings of the Section membership.
 - b. The Executive Committee shall, by majority vote, fill any vacancies during the terms of elected Officers for the remainder of the term. For the Section Representative to the MAA Congress, the MAA Congress elects a replacement to complete the unexpired term when a vacancy occurs between elections.
 - c. The appointed officers shall be non-voting members of the Executive Committee, but the Executive Committee should strive for consensus decision-making that includes all officers.
- 4. The elected Section officers shall have the following duties and powers:
 - a. The Chair, Chair-Elect, and Past Chair shall serve as the lead administrators of the Section.
 - i. The Chair shall preside at all business meetings of the Section and of the Executive Committee and appoint all non-elected officers and committees. The Chair may, in consultation with the Executive Committee, establish and abolish committees and appoint and remove committee members.

- ii. The Chair-Elect shall preside at Section business meetings and meetings of the Executive Committee in the absence of the Chair and shall serve in any other capacity as assigned by the Chair. The Chair-Elect shall chair the Teaching Award Committee.
- iii. The Past Chair shall serve as mentor for the Chair and shall preside in the absences of the Chair and Chair-Elect or when they must recuse themselves. The Past Chair also has primary responsibility for soliciting nominations for elections in alignment with the commitment to representation, inclusion, and anti-bias in Article III.
- b. The Program Chair, Vice Program Chair, and Second Vice Program Chair serve as the lead organizers for the Section meetings.
 - i. The Program Chair shall be the Chair of the Program Committee and shall, in consultation with other members of the Program Committee and the (Section) Chair, be responsible for the programs, including the selection of speakers and other professional activities in alignment with Article III, at the meetings during the academic year immediately following the academic year in which the Program Chair was elected.
 - ii. The Vice Program Chair shall be a member of the Program Committee.
 - iii. The Second Vice Program Chair shall be a member of the Program Committee.
- c. The Secretary shall keep minutes of business meetings of the Section and meetings of the Executive Committee, preserve the records of the Section, submit meeting reports and annual reports to the Association as required, and make sure that official correspondence of the Section is reaching the appropriate members.
- d. The Treasurer shall collect any Section dues and event registration fees, receive funds provided by the Association, arrange for the safekeeping of all Section monies, maintain proper and accurate accounts of such monies, make timely payments of all debts of the Section, submit an annual financial report to the Association, and give a Treasurer's report at each Spring meeting of the Section.

ARTICLE V: Meetings

- 1. The Section shall hold one Section meeting during the fall and one during the spring of each academic year unless precluded by circumstances. The Executive Committee shall choose the time and place of each Section meeting and determine which matters are to be brought to a vote by members of the Section at each Section business meeting. The Executive Committee has a responsibility to make Section meetings accessible to the diverse membership of the Section (e.g., allowing participants/members to attend meetings virtually, choosing locations across the Section's region, attending to safety and cost in the modes of participation in the meetings).
- 2. A business meeting shall be held during at least one Section meeting in each calendar year. The MAA encourages Sections to have hybrid business meetings so that members who cannot travel to Section meetings can still participate.

- 3. A special Section meeting or Section business meeting may be called by the Executive Committee or via petition to the Executive Committee by twenty-five or more Section members.
- 4. Each member of the Section shall be notified, in a newsletter or by other means, at least 45 days in advance, of any Section business meeting.
- 5. A quorum at a Section business meeting shall consist of not less than 15 members of the Section, and no votes may be taken at a Section business meeting unless a quorum is present.
- 6. Meetings of the Executive Committee shall be called by the Chair (or Acting Chair) and shall be held at least twice a year.

ARTICLE VI: Fees and Use of Assets

- 1. Registration and other fees to cover the expenses of meetings shall be set by the Executive Committee.
- 2. The assets of the Section shall be used exclusively to further the purposes of the Section and, in the event of the dissolution of the Section, the remaining assets shall be turned over to MAA to be used for purposes consistent with the bylaws of that organization.

ARTICLE VII: Committees

- 1. The Section shall have two standing committees: the Teaching Award Committee and the Program Committee.
- 2. The Chair shall form and disband ad hoc committees as needed.
- 3. The Teaching Award Committee shall select the Section's annual teaching award recipient. The Chair-Elect, Chair, Past Chair and Secretary shall be the members of the Teaching Award Committee. The Chair-Elect shall serve as the chair of the Teaching Award Committee. The first order of business of the Teaching Award Committee shall be to review the MAA document "Avoiding Implicit Bias". If necessary, the Chair-Elect shall seek additional nominations for ad hoc members of this selection committee in alignment with Article III.
- 4. The Program Committee shall make final determinations concerning Section meeting programs. The Chair, Program Chair, Vice Program Chair, and Second Vice Program Chair shall be the members of the Program Committee.

ARTICLE VIII: Amendments to Bylaws

- 1. Amendments to these bylaws may be proposed by the Executive Committee or upon petition to the Executive Committee by twenty-five members of the Section at least thirty days prior to a business meeting where they will be considered.
- 2. The Secretary of the Section shall notify each member of the Section of any proposed amendment(s) at least 20 days prior to the meeting at which voting on the proposed amendment(s) takes place.

- 3. Subject to subsequent approval by the Board of Governors of the Mathematical Association of America, these bylaws may be amended by 2/3 of the votes cast by a quorum at a business meeting of the Section.
- 4. A complete revision of these bylaws shall be subject to the procedures required for other amendments to these bylaws.

Addendum: Zip Codes

Following are the zip codes referenced in Article II. These zip codes are intended to be those of the California counties of Imperial, Inyo, Kern, Kings, Los Angeles, Mono, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, San Diego, Santa Barbara, Tulare, and Ventura; and of Clark County Nevada.

88901, 88905, 89002, 89004, 89005, 89006, 89007, 89009, 89011, 89012, 89014, 89015, 89016, 89018, 89019, 89021, 89024, 89025, 89026, 89027, 89028, 89029, 89030, 89031, 89032, 89033, 89034, 89036, 89037, 89039, 89040, 89044, 89046, 89052, 89053, 89054, 89067, 89070, 89074, 89077, 89081, 89084, 89085, 89086, 89087, 89101, 89102, 89103, 89104, 89105, 89106, 89107, 89108, 89109, 89110, 89111, 89112, 89113, 89114, 89115, 89116, 89117, 89118, 89119, 89120, 89121, 89122, 89123, 89124, 89125, 89126, 89127, 89128, 89129, 89130, 89131, 89132, 89133, 89134, 89135, 89136, 89137, 89138, 89139, 89140, 89141, 89142, 89143, 89144, 89145, 89146, 89147, 89148, 89149, 89150, 89151, 89152, 89153, 89154, 89155, 89156, 89157, 89158, 89159, 89160, 89161, 89162, 89163, 89164, 89165, 89166, 89169, 89170, 89173, 89177, 89178, 89179, 89180, 89183, 89185, 89191, 89193, 89195, 89199, 90001, 90002, 90003, 90004, 90005, 90006, 90007, 90008, 90010, 90011, 90012, 90013, 90014, 90015, 90016, 90017, 90018, 90019, 90020, 90021, 90022, 90023, 90024, 90025, 90026, 90027, 90028, 90029, 90031, 90032, 90033, 90034, 90035, 90036, 90037, 90038, 90039, 90040, 90041, 90042, 90043, 90044, 90045, 90046, 90047, 90048, 90049, 90056, 90057, 90058, 90059, 90061, 90062, 90063, 90064, 90065, 90066, 90067, 90068, 90069, 90071, 90077, 90079, 90094, 90201, 90210, 90211, 90212, 90220, 90221, 90222, 90230, 90232, 90240, 90241, 90242, 90245, 90247, 90248, 90249, 90250, 90254, 90255, 90260, 90261, 90262, 90265, 90265, 90266, 90270, 90272, 90274, 90275, 90277, 90278, 90280, 90290, 90291, 90292, 90293, 90301, 90302, 90303, 90304, 90305, 90311, 90401, 90402, 90403, 90404, 90405, 90501, 90502, 90503, 90504, 90505, 90506, 90601, 90602, 90603, 90604, 90605, 90606, 90620, 90621, 90623, 90623, 90630, 90630, 90631, 90631, 90638, 90638, 90640, 90650, 90660, 90670, 90680, 90701, 90703, 90706, 90710, 90712, 90713, 90715, 90716, 90717, 90720, 90723, 90731, 90732, 90740, 90744, 90745, 90746, 90755, 90802, 90803, 90804, 90805, 90806, 90807, 90808, 90810, 90813, 90814, 90815, 90822, 90831, 90833, 90834, 90835, 91001, 91006, 91007, 91008, 91010, 91011, 91016, 91020, 91024, 91030, 91040, 91042, 91101, 91103, 91104, 91105, 91106, 91107, 91108, 91201, 91202, 91203, 91204, 91205, 91206, 91207, 91208, 91210, 91214, 91301, 91302, 91303, 91304, 91304, 91306, 91307, 91307, 91311, 91311, 91316, 91320, 91321, 91324, 91325, 91326, 91331, 91335, 91340, 91342, 91343, 91344, 91345, 91350, 91351, 91352, 91354, 91355, 91356, 91360, 91361, 91361, 91362, 91362, 91364, 91367, 91377, 91381, 91382, 91383, 91384, 91387, 91390, 91401, 91402, 91403, 91405, 91406, 91411, 91423, 91436, 91501, 91502, 91504, 91505, 91506, 91601, 91602, 91604, 91605, 91606, 91607, 91608, 91701, 91702, 91706, 91708, 91709, 91709, 91710, 91711, 91722, 91723, 91724, 91730, 91731, 91732, 91733, 91737, 91739, 91740, 91741, 91744, 91745, 91746, 91748, 91750, 91752, 91754, 91755, 91758, 91761, 91762, 91763, 91764, 91765, 91766, 91766, 91767, 91768, 91770, 91773, 91775, 91776, 91780, 91784, 91786, 91789, 91790, 91791, 91792, 91792, 91801, 91803, 91804, 91901, 91902, 91905, 91906, 91910, 91911, 91913, 91914, 91915, 91916, 91917, 91932, 91934, 91935, 91941, 91942, 91945, 91950, 91962, 91963, 91977, 91978, 91980, 92003, 92004, 92004, 92007, 92008, 92009, 92010, 92011, 92014, 92019, 92020, 92021, 92024, 92025, 92026, 92027, 92028, 92028, 92029, 92036, 92037, 92040, 92054, 92055, 92056, 92057, 92058, 92059, 92061, 92064, 92065, 92066, 92069, 92070, 92071, 92075, 92078, 92081, 92082, 92083, 92084, 92086, 92091, 92101, 92102, 92103, 92104, 92105, 92106, 92107, 92108, 92109, 92110, 92111, 92113, 92114, 92115, 92116, 92117, 92118, 92119, 92120, 92121, 92122, 92123, 92124, 92126, 92127, 92128, 92129, 92130, 92131, 92135, 92139, 92154, 92173, 92197, 92199, 92201, 92203, 92210, 92211, 92220, 92223, 92225, 92225, 92227, 92230, 92231, 92233, 92234, 92236, 92240, 92241, 92242, 92243, 92249, 92250, 92251, 92252, 92253, 92254, 92256, 92257, 92260, 92262, 92264, 92270, 92274, 92274, 92276, 92277, 92278, 92280, 92281, 92282, 92283, 92284, 92285, 92301, 92305, 92307, 92308, 92309, 92310, 92311, 92313, 92314, 92315, 92316, 92318, 92320, 92323, 92324, 92324, 92327, 92328, 92332, 92335, 92336, 92337, 92338, 92339, 92342, 92344, 92345, 92346, 92347, 92354, 92356, 92358, 92359, 92363, 92364, 92365, 92366, 92368, 92371, 92372, 92373, 92373, 92374, 92376, 92377, 92392, 92394, 92395, 92397, 92399, 92399, 92401, 92403, 92404, 92405, 92407, 92408, 92410, 92411, 92501, 92503, 92504, 92505, 92506, 92507, 92508, 92509, 92518, 92530, 92532, 92536, 92539, 92543, 92544, 92545, 92548, 92551, 92553, 92555, 92557, 92561, 92562, 92563, 92567, 92570, 92571, 92582, 92583, 92584, 92585, 92586, 92587, 92590, 92591, 92592, 92595, 92596, 92602, 92603, 92604, 92606, 92610, 92612, 92614, 92617, 92618, 92620, 92624, 92625, 92626, 92627, 92629, 92630, 92637, 92646, 92647, 92648, 92649, 92651, 92653, 92655, 92656, 92657, 92660, 92661, 92662, 92663, 92672, 92673, 92675, 92676, 92677, 92679, 92683, 92688, 92691, 92692, 92694, 92701, 92703, 92704, 92705, 92706, 92707, 92708, 92780, 92782, 92799, 92801, 92802, 92804, 92805, 92806, 92807, 92808, 92809, 92821, 92823, 92831, 92832, 92833, 92835, 92840, 92841, 92843, 92844, 92845, 92860, 92861, 92862, 92865, 92866, 92867, 92868, 92869, 92870, 92879, 92880, 92880, 92881, 92882, 92883, 92886, 92887, 92899, 93001, 93003, 93004, 93010, 93012, 93013, 93013, 93015, 93021, 93022, 93023, 93030, 93033, 93035, 93036, 93041, 93060, 93063, 93065, 93066, 93101, 93103, 93105, 93108, 93109, 93110, 93111, 93117, 93202, 93203, 93204, 93205, 93206, 93207, 93212, 93212, 93215, 93215, 93219, 93221, 93223, 93224, 93225, 93226, 93230, 93235, 93238, 93238, 93239, 93240, 93241, 93242, 93243, 93243, 93244, 93245, 93247, 93249, 93250, 93251, 93252, 93252, 93252, 93254, 93255, 93256, 93257, 93260, 93262, 93263, 93265, 93266, 93267, 93268, 93270, 93271, 93272, 93274, 93277, 93280, 93283, 93285, 93286, 93287, 93291, 93292, 93301, 93304, 93305, 93306, 93307, 93308, 93309, 93311, 93312, 93313, 93314, 93427, 93434, 93436, 93437, 93454, 93455, 93458, 93460, 93463, 93501, 93505, 93510, 93512, 93513, 93514, 93514, 93516, 93516, 93517, 93518, 93523, 93526, 93527, 93527, 93527, 93531, 93532, 93534, 93535, 93536, 93536, 93543, 93544, 93545, 93546, 93550, 93551, 93552, 93553, 93555, 93555, 93560, 93560, 93561, 93562, 93563, 93591, 93603, 93615, 93618, 93631, 93631, 93641, 93646, 93647, 93654, 93656, 96107, 96133